
 DEERFIELD PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 MEETING AGENDA 

 920 Waukegan Road, Deerfield, IL, Board Room 
 Wednesday, November 15, 2023, 5:30 PM 

 1.  ROLL CALL & CALL TO ORDER

 2.  OPPORTUNITY FOR THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD  & CORRESPONDENCE

 3.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES
 A.  October 24, 2023 Regular Meeting (ACTION)

 4.  TREASURER REPORT
 A.  Monthly Financials: Balance Sheet, Revenue & Expenses  (ACTION) 
 B.  List of Checks and Payments for Approval (ACTION)
 C.  Bank Account Changes (DISCUSSION)

 5.  VILLAGE LIAISON REPORT

 6.  LIBRARY DIRECTOR’S REPORT
 A.  Building Updates Report
 B.  Staff Holiday Party

 7.  OLD BUSINESS

 8.  NEW BUSINESS
 A.  FY 2024 Per Capita Grant Application Standards Review (DISCUSSION)

 9.  OTHER

 10.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(3):The selection of a person to fill a public office, as defined in
 the OMA, including a vacancy in a public office, when the public body is given the power to appoint under law
 or ordinance, or the discipline, performance or removal of the occupant of a public office, when the public body
 is given power to remove the occupant under law or ordinance.

 11.  ADJOURNMENT

 MISSION STATEMENT: To provide our community with open access to the world of information and 
 ideas, encouraging lifelong learning and personal growth in a welcoming environment. 

 Upcoming Board Meetings:  December 20 

 *All topics on the agenda are potential action items.

1



 DEERFIELD PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 October 24, 2023 

 1.  ROLL CALL & CALL TO ORDER 
 President Luisa Ellenbogen called the mee�ng to order at 6:31 p.m., in Mee�ng Room A, 920 Waukegan 
 Road, Deerfield, IL. 

 Present Board Members: Luisa Ellenbogen- President, Seth Schri�man - Treasurer, Ken Abosch - 
 Secretary, Mike Goldberg, and Stephanie Brand. 

 Staff: Amy Falasz-Peterson, Library Director; Melissa Stoeger, Assistant Director of Adult and Youth 
 Services, and Jasmine Hosein, Administra�ve Associate. 

 Bill Seiden, Village Liaison. 

 2.  OPPORTUNITY FOR THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD & CORRESPONDENCE 
 None. 

 3.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 A.  September 20, 2023 Regular Mee�ng (ACTION) 

 MOTION: Mr. Mike Goldberg made a mo�on to approve the September 20, 2023 Regular Mee�ng 
 minutes, seconded by Mr. Seth Schri�man. 

 Vote: 5 Yes Luisa Ellenbogen, Seth Schri�man, Ken Abosch, Mike Goldberg, and Stephanie Brand. 
 The mo�on was approved. 

 4.  TREASURER REPORT 
 A.       Monthly Financials: Balance Sheet, Revenues & Expenses (ACTION) 

 Mr. Schri�man presented the monthly financial report. 

 MOTION: Mr. Goldberg made a mo�on to approve the September Financials, seconded by Mr. Ken 
 Abosch. 

 Vote: 5 Yes Luisa Ellenbogen, Seth Schri�man, Ken Abosch, Mike Goldberg, and Stephanie Brand. 
 The mo�on was approved. 

 B.  List of Checks and Payments for Approval (ACTION) 
 Mr. Schri�man presented the outstanding list of checks and payments to be approved for September, 
 which included: 

 - Pe�y Cash, Check Num 750 - 751, Bank Financial                           $                          75.00 
 -Electronic Payments, 4 ACHs, WinTrust  $                        160.79 

2



 -AP Checks 13967 - 14010, 11 ACHs, WinTrust  $                 116,280.72 
 The total amount presented for approval  $                 116,516.51 

 MOTION: Mr. Goldberg made a mo�on to approve the Lists of Checks and Payments, seconded by Mr. 
 Abosch. 

 Vote: 5 Yes Luisa Ellenbogen, Seth Schri�man, Ken Abosch, Mike Goldberg, and Stephanie Brand. 
 The mo�on was approved. 

 C.  Proposed FY 2024 Budget & 2023 Levy Request (ACTION) 
 MOTION: Mr. Goldberg made a mo�on to approve the proposed FY 2024 Budget & 2023 Levy Request, 
 seconded by Mr. Abosch. 

 Vote: 5 Yes Luisa Ellenbogen, Seth Schri�man, Ken Abosch, Mike Goldberg, and Stephanie Brand. 
 The mo�on was approved. 

 5.  VILLAGE LIAISON REPORT 
 Mr. Bill Seiden gave the Village report. 

 6.  LIBRARY DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 Ms. Amy Falasz-Peterson gave the Director’s report including the Library is on track to surpass 2019, 
 pre-pandemic numbers both in person and circula�on. 

 7.  OLD BUSINESS 
 A.  Patron Ban Update (ACTION) 

 MOTION: Mr. Schri�man made a mo�on to extend the patron ban un�l January 1, 2028, seconded by 
 Mr. Goldberg. 

 Vote: 5 Yes Luisa Ellenbogen, Seth Schri�man, Ken Abosch, Mike Goldberg, and Stephanie Brand. 
 The mo�on was approved. 

 B.  Building Update: Bid Acceptance (ACTION) 
 MOTION: Mr. Schri�man made a mo�on to accept the building update bid in the amount of 
 $315,095.23, seconded by Mr. Abosch. 

 Vote: 5 Yes Luisa Ellenbogen, Seth Schri�man, Ken Abosch, Mike Goldberg, and Stephanie Brand. 
 The mo�on was approved. 

 8.  NEW BUSINESS 
 A.  Board Vacancy Update (Discussion) 

 The Board discussed the vacancy and the interview process to fill the open posi�on. The Board 
 determined that they will begin the regular November mee�ng an hour earlier and will review and 

3



 discuss the applicants. The Board will have had the opportunity to review the applicants and reflect on 
 what they envision for the future. 

 B.  Employee Handbook Updates (ACTION) 
 MOTION: Mr. Schri�man made a mo�on to approve the proposed Employee Handbook Updates, 
 seconded by Mr. Abosch. 

 Vote: 5 Yes Luisa Ellenbogen, Seth Schri�man, Ken Abosch, Mike Goldberg, and Stephanie Brand. 
 The mo�on was approved. 

 9.  OTHER 
 None. 

 10.  ADJOURNMENT 
 At 7:24p.m, Mr. Goldberg made a mo�on to adjourn the mee�ng, seconded by Mr. Abosch. 

 Vote: 5 Yes Luisa Ellenbogen, Seth Schri�man, Ken Abosch, Mike Goldberg, and Stephanie Brand. 
 The mo�on was approved. 

 __________________________________________________ 
 Ken Abosch, Secretary 

4



Deerfield Public Library
Balance Sheet

As of October 31, 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, November 10, 2023 12:09 PM GMT-06:00   1/4

TOTAL

ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank Accounts

11000 Cash and Investments - General 0.00

11100 General Operating - WinTrust 854,937.12

11200 Payroll - WinTrust 143,886.38

11300 E-Pay - WinTrust 33,084.97

11400 Deposits - Bank Financial 59,775.95

11500 Petty Cash - Bank Financial 2,380.62

11600 Max-Safe Wintrust 4,690,328.51

11900 Petty Cash 574.00

Total 11000 Cash and Investments - General 5,784,967.55

14100 PMA Financial Services

10-1410 PMA Reserve Fund 2,194,084.60

14110 PMA General Fund 0.00

60-1440 PMA Debt Service 0.00

60-1441 PMA Debt Service 2 0.00

Total 14100 PMA Financial Services 2,194,084.60

Total Bank Accounts $7,979,052.15

Accounts Receivable $0.00

Other Current Assets

12101 Inventory Asset 0.00

15000 Other Current Assets 0.00

15010 Receivables 4.80

15100 Property Taxes Receivable 4,386,500.00

15110 Property Tax Receivable - 2011A 830,518.00

15121 Property Tax Receivable - 2013 0.00

15200 Due from Village of Deerfield 0.00

15300 Prepaid Expenses 0.00

15400 Accrued Revenue - General 0.00

Total Other Current Assets $5,217,022.80

Total Current Assets $13,196,074.95

5



Deerfield Public Library
Balance Sheet

As of October 31, 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, November 10, 2023 12:09 PM GMT-06:00   2/4

TOTAL

Fixed Assets

19000 Capital Assets

19050 Capital Assets -Not Depreciated

19100 Land 65,493.00

19150 Construction In Progress 0.00

Total 19050 Capital Assets -Not Depreciated 65,493.00

19200 Capital Assets - To Depreciate

19210 Building 13,197,410.12

19300 Equipment

19301 Equip - Phone System 33,636.00

19302 Equip - Automation System 309,361.00

19303 Equip - RFID 433,659.00

19304 Equip - Vehicle 23,432.00

19310 Furniture 883,919.00

Total 19300 Equipment 1,684,007.00

Total 19200 Capital Assets - To Depreciate 14,881,417.12

19220 Accumulated Depreciation -5,741,052.00

Total 19000 Capital Assets 9,205,858.12

Total Fixed Assets $9,205,858.12

Other Assets

15110 Deferred Outflows of Resources 377,678.74

15120 Deferred Outflows of Resources - OPEB 283,312.00

19900 Due From Other Activity

19960 Gen - due from 2011A 606,085.00

19961 Gen - Due from 2013 0.00

60-1011 Debt Service Due from Genl 0.00

61-1011 2013-Due from Genl 0.00

Total 19900 Due From Other Activity 606,085.00

Total Other Assets $1,267,075.74

TOTAL ASSETS $23,669,008.81

6



Deerfield Public Library
Balance Sheet

As of October 31, 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, November 10, 2023 12:09 PM GMT-06:00   3/4

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

21000 Accounts Payable 66,760.74

Total Accounts Payable $66,760.74

Credit Cards $0.00

Other Current Liabilities

21055 Other Current Payables 0.00

21500 Retainage 0.00

22000 Payroll Liabilities 0.40

22100 Salaries Payable 63,496.63

22200 Deferred Compensation 0.00

22300 Withholdings 0.00

22310 Federal Income Tax -236.87

22320 Social Security 738.58

22330 Medicare 0.00

22340 Employer' s FICA 0.00

22350 State Income Tax -2,265.69

22360 IMRF 12,766.77

22370 ICMA 70.67

22375 Vision 6,391.88

22380 Medical/Health -30,493.38

22385 Dental -3,051.59

22390 Life 6,962.21

22400 EAP 87.00

Total 22300 Withholdings -9,030.42

Total 22000 Payroll Liabilities 54,466.61

22395 FSA Payable -1,815.78

23000 Due to Village - Short Term 0.00

24000 Accrued Expenses 0.00

25000 Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,813,735.44

25100 Deferred Property Taxes 4,386,500.00

Total 25000 Deferred Inflows of Resources 6,200,235.44

25110 Unearned Property Taxes-2011a 683,950.00

25120 Unearned Prop Taxes -20132 0.00

25500 Deferred Inflows of Resources - OPEB 211,999.00

25902 Unearned Impact Fee - AMLI Proj 0.00

26300 Net Pension liability -1,254,070.00

29000 Due To Other Activity Bank Acct 0.00

Total Other Current Liabilities $5,894,765.27

Total Current Liabilities $5,961,526.01

7



Deerfield Public Library
Balance Sheet

As of October 31, 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, November 10, 2023 12:09 PM GMT-06:00   4/4

TOTAL

Long-Term Liabilities

26000 Noncurrent Liabilities

26009 Compensated Absences 94,707.00

26100 Other Postemployment Benefits 519,480.00

26200 Due to Village - Long Term Debt 4,746,049.74

Total 26000 Noncurrent Liabilities 5,360,236.74

Total Long-Term Liabilities $5,360,236.74

Total Liabilities $11,321,762.75

Equity

31000 Opening Bal Equity 0.00

32000 Fund Balance, Beginning 4,412,524.82

32100 Fund Balance 2011-A -43,738.95

32110 Fund Balance-2013 -36,910.41

32120 Fund Balance _ Res 2,540,309.11

32130 Fund Balance LT Debt Acct Grp 370,363.10

33000 Investment in Capital Assets 10,203,278.12

33050 Debt Related to Capital Assets -6,286,049.74

Total 33000 Investment in Capital Assets 3,917,228.38

Net Income 1,187,470.01

Total Equity $12,347,246.06

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $23,669,008.81

8



Deerfield Public Library
Budget vs. Actuals: Budget 2023 - FY23 P&L

January - October, 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, November 10, 2023 12:10 PM GMT-06:00   1/3

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET % OF BUDGET

Income

41000 Taxes

41100 Property Tax 4,537,900.84 4,387,720.00 150,180.84 103.42 %

41200 Replacement Tax 76,511.13 25,000.00 51,511.13 306.04 %

60-4110 Property Taxes - Debt Service 2021 687,450.00 687,450.00 0.00 100.00 %

Total 41000 Taxes 5,301,861.97 5,100,170.00 201,691.97 103.95 %

42000 Fees & Fines

42100 Material Fees 3,586.92 10,000.00 -6,413.08 35.87 %

42200 Non-Resident Fees 8,304.40 5,000.00 3,304.40 166.09 %

42300 Printing/Copying Fees 4,668.18 4,000.00 668.18 116.70 %

Total 42000 Fees & Fines 16,559.50 19,000.00 -2,440.50 87.16 %

43000 Investment Income

43100 Interest - General 148,724.56 10,000.00 138,724.56 1,487.25 %

43200 Interest - Reserve 30,438.30 10,000.00 20,438.30 304.38 %

Total 43000 Investment Income 179,162.86 20,000.00 159,162.86 895.81 %

44000 Grants

44100 State Grant

44150 Per Capita Grant 28,314.10 20,000.00 8,314.10 141.57 %

Total 44100 State Grant 28,314.10 20,000.00 8,314.10 141.57 %

Total 44000 Grants 28,314.10 20,000.00 8,314.10 141.57 %

45000 Gifts and Contributions

45100 General Donations 10,027.75 500.00 9,527.75 2,005.55 %

45500 Friends Contributions 8,480.86 10,000.00 -1,519.14 84.81 %

Total 45100 General Donations 18,508.61 10,500.00 8,008.61 176.27 %

Total 45000 Gifts and Contributions 18,508.61 10,500.00 8,008.61 176.27 %

49000 Miscellaneous Revenue

49009 Miscellaneous 2,381.57 500.00 1,881.57 476.31 %

49065 Sale of Surplus Materials 332.71 500.00 -167.29 66.54 %

Total 49000 Miscellaneous Revenue 2,714.28 1,000.00 1,714.28 271.43 %

Total Income $5,547,121.32 $5,170,670.00 $376,451.32 107.28 %

GROSS PROFIT $5,547,121.32 $5,170,670.00 $376,451.32 107.28 %

Expenses

50000 General Expenses

51000 Personnel Expenses

51100 Salaries 2,227,130.20 2,430,250.00 -203,119.80 91.64 %

51200 FICA 164,827.21 186,000.00 -21,172.79 88.62 %

51300 Health/Misc Benefits 269,576.95 387,000.00 -117,423.05 69.66 %

51400 Pension Contribution 149,140.34 221,000.00 -71,859.66 67.48 %

51500 Other Benefits 6,389.20 9,000.00 -2,610.80 70.99 %

51600 Staff Enrichment 2,741.42 4,000.00 -1,258.58 68.54 %

Total 51000 Personnel Expenses 2,819,805.32 3,237,250.00 -417,444.68 87.10 %

9



Deerfield Public Library
Budget vs. Actuals: Budget 2023 - FY23 P&L

January - October, 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, November 10, 2023 12:10 PM GMT-06:00   2/3

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET % OF BUDGET

52000 Facility Expenses

52100 Interior Facility Maintenance 55,132.29 60,000.00 -4,867.71 91.89 %

52200 Facility Equipment Maintenance 108,792.94 80,000.00 28,792.94 135.99 %

52300 Exterior Building Maintenance 19,782.07 30,000.00 -10,217.93 65.94 %

52400 Utilities

52410 Water 3,047.06 3,000.00 47.06 101.57 %

52430 Telephone - Voice 15,638.28 23,000.00 -7,361.72 67.99 %

52440 Data Lines 11,361.27 17,000.00 -5,638.73 66.83 %

Total 52400 Utilities 30,046.61 43,000.00 -12,953.39 69.88 %

52500 Minor Furnishings & Equipment 11,212.07 25,000.00 -13,787.93 44.85 %

Total 52000 Facility Expenses 224,965.98 238,000.00 -13,034.02 94.52 %

53000 Library Materials

53100 Periodicals 6,787.24 15,500.00 -8,712.76 43.79 %

53200 Adult Materials-Books

53221 Books - Adult Non-Fiction 32,487.24 40,000.00 -7,512.76 81.22 %

53222 Books-Adult Fiction 41,484.87 60,000.00 -18,515.13 69.14 %

Total 53200 Adult Materials-Books 73,972.11 100,000.00 -26,027.89 73.97 %

53300 Audio Visual Materials

53320 Audio Visual - Adult 42,854.82 64,000.00 -21,145.18 66.96 %

53340 Audio Visual - Youth 5,822.47 12,000.00 -6,177.53 48.52 %

Total 53300 Audio Visual Materials 48,677.29 76,000.00 -27,322.71 64.05 %

53400 Youth Materials-Books

53241 Books - Youth & Teens 44,392.22 73,000.00 -28,607.78 60.81 %

53550 Literacy Support - Youth 907.41 2,000.00 -1,092.59 45.37 %

Total 53400 Youth Materials-Books 45,299.63 75,000.00 -29,700.37 60.40 %

53501 Electronic Resources

53500 E-Resources 261,486.13 295,000.00 -33,513.87 88.64 %

Total 53501 Electronic Resources 261,486.13 295,000.00 -33,513.87 88.64 %

53600 Non-Traditional Resources 8,022.02 14,000.00 -5,977.98 57.30 %

Total 53000 Library Materials 444,244.42 575,500.00 -131,255.58 77.19 %

54000 Library Programs

54100 Admin Programs 4,087.23 4,000.00 87.23 102.18 %

54150 Outreach Programs 1,119.40 1,250.00 -130.60 89.55 %

54210 Adult Programs 25,663.27 25,000.00 663.27 102.65 %

54400 Youth Programs 24,388.46 25,000.00 -611.54 97.55 %

54500 MakerSpace Programs 1,309.84 10,000.00 -8,690.16 13.10 %

Total 54000 Library Programs 56,568.20 65,250.00 -8,681.80 86.69 %

55000 Technology

55350 Software & Licenses 205,673.68 230,000.00 -24,326.32 89.42 %

55360 IT Support 113,568.15 142,000.00 -28,431.85 79.98 %

55400 New Projects/equip

56440 IT Equipment 28,723.20 63,000.00 -34,276.80 45.59 %

10



Deerfield Public Library
Budget vs. Actuals: Budget 2023 - FY23 P&L

January - October, 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, November 10, 2023 12:10 PM GMT-06:00   3/3

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET % OF BUDGET

Total 55400 New Projects/equip 28,723.20 63,000.00 -34,276.80 45.59 %

55440 MakerSpace Equipment 8,532.76 10,000.00 -1,467.24 85.33 %

Total 55000 Technology 356,497.79 445,000.00 -88,502.21 80.11 %

56000 Professional/Contractual Svcs

56009 Other Office Support 9,460.97 10,000.00 -539.03 94.61 %

56100 Insurance 40,026.00 40,000.00 26.00 100.07 %

56200 Postage 5,801.26 8,250.00 -2,448.74 70.32 %

56300 Professional Printing Services 12,769.00 16,000.00 -3,231.00 79.81 %

56500 Professional Admin Services 24,397.63 21,000.00 3,397.63 116.18 %

56550 Cataloging Service 19,249.39 22,000.00 -2,750.61 87.50 %

56555 Professional Outreach Services 7,222.00 6,750.00 472.00 106.99 %

Total 56500 Professional Admin Services 50,869.02 49,750.00 1,119.02 102.25 %

56700 Travel for Library Services 95.11 1,000.00 -904.89 9.51 %

Total 56000 Professional/Contractual Svcs 119,021.36 125,000.00 -5,978.64 95.22 %

56400 Supplies

56410 General Operating Supplies 10,617.34 14,000.00 -3,382.66 75.84 %

56420 Processing Supplies 18,763.34 23,000.00 -4,236.66 81.58 %

Total 56400 Supplies 29,380.68 37,000.00 -7,619.32 79.41 %

57000 Training/Development Expenses

56600 Dues & Memberships 6,791.88 8,000.00 -1,208.12 84.90 %

57100 Training & Education 21,555.09 25,000.00 -3,444.91 86.22 %

57200 Training Travel 4,800.42 6,000.00 -1,199.58 80.01 %

Total 57000 Training/Development Expenses 33,147.39 39,000.00 -5,852.61 84.99 %

Total 50000 General Expenses 4,083,631.14 4,762,000.00 -678,368.86 85.75 %

61000 Capital Expenses

61100 Facility Improvements 161,295.17 500,000.00 -338,704.83 32.26 %

Total 61000 Capital Expenses 161,295.17 500,000.00 -338,704.83 32.26 %

70000 Debt Service

60-7010 Debt Service 2021 Interest (Payments) 116,225.00 232,450.00 -116,225.00 50.00 %

60-7020 Debt Service 2021 Principal (Payments) 455,000.00 -455,000.00

Total 70000 Debt Service 116,225.00 687,450.00 -571,225.00 16.91 %

Total Expenses $4,361,151.31 $5,949,450.00 $ -1,588,298.69 73.30 %

NET OPERATING INCOME $1,185,970.01 $ -778,780.00 $1,964,750.01 -152.29 %

NET INCOME $1,185,970.01 $ -778,780.00 $1,964,750.01 -152.29 %

11



11/09/2023 01:22:38 PM For informational purposes only. 1 / 2

Master Total Portfolio Report
Report as of 10/31/2023

PMA Financial Network
2135 CityGate Lane
7th Floor
Naperville, IL 60563
Phone: 630-657-6400
Fax: 630-718-8701

Deerfield Public Library (80226-102 - Reserve Fund)
Type Holding ID Settle Date Maturity FDIC # Instrument Cost Par-Val/Mat. Val Rate
ISC 10/31/2023 ISC Balance $94,507.76 $94,507.76

SEC SEC-50454-1 02/09/2022 02/09/2024 33124 GOLDMAN SACHS BANK USA $150,000.00 $150,000.00 1.000

SEC SEC-50882-1 02/18/2022 02/20/2024 35141 BMW BANK NORTH AMERICA $248,245.14 $248,000.00 1.150

SEC SEC-51365-1 03/16/2022 03/18/2024 33954 CAPITAL ONE BANK USA NA $247,000.00 $247,000.00 1.600

CD CD-1347127-1 03/20/2023 03/19/2024 58816 Royal Business Bank $160,000.00 $168,538.95 5.337

CD CD-1348129-1 04/17/2023 04/16/2024 34607 First Internet Bank of Indiana $237,450.00 $249,887.55 5.253

SEC SEC-52553-1 05/04/2022 05/06/2024 4297 CAPITAL ONE NA $246,239.16 $246,000.00 2.600

CD CD-1346595-1 02/14/2023 08/07/2024 57993 ServisFirst Bank $232,950.00 $249,516.72 4.807

CD CD-1352513-1 08/18/2023 08/19/2024 5496 Cornerstone Bank $100,000.00 $105,402.44 5.373

CD CD-295000-1 10/19/2022 10/18/2024 9450 FIRST BANK OF OHIO $228,000.00 $248,029.80 4.393

SEC SEC-56853-1 10/21/2022 10/21/2024 3511 WELLS FARGO BANK NA $249,692.54 $249,000.00 4.355

Sub Totals → $2,194,084.60 $2,255,883.22

Totals → $2,194,084.60 $2,255,883.22

12



11/09/2023 01:22:38 PM For informational purposes only. 2 / 2

Time and Dollar Weighted Average Portfolio Yield: 3.96%

Weighted Average Portfolio Maturity: 215.97 Days

Note: Weighted Yield & Weighted Average Portfolio Maturity are calculated using “Market Value” and are only based on the fixed rate investments.

Portfolio Summary

Type Allocation (%) Allocation ($) Description
SEC 50.20 $1,125,048.82 Securities

CD 45.58 $1,021,375.46 Certificate of Deposit

ISC 4.22 $94,507.76 ISC Account

Index

Cost is comprised of the total amount you paid for the investment including any fees and commissions.

Rate is the average monthly rate for liquid investments or the rate on the last business day of the month for SDA investments or the yield to maturity or yield to worst for fixed term investments.

Face/Par is the amount received at maturity for fixed rate investments.

Market Value reflects the market value as reported by an independent third -party pricing service. Certificates of Deposit and other assets for which market pricing is not readily available from a
third -party pricing service are listed at “Cost”.

CD - Certificates of Deposit, CP - Commercial Paper, ISC - Investment Shares Class, MMA - Money Market Account, SEC - Government Securities, TS - Term Series

13



Deerfield Public Library
Check Detail

For Board Meeting on November 15, 2023
Summary

11300 WinTrust E Pay 3 ACHs $203.81

11100 WinTrust General Operating Check Num 14011-14057, 12 ACHS $236,684.23

Total Payments to Approve $236,888.04

11300 WinTrust E Pay -8926

Total for 11300 WinTrust E Pay -8926 203.81 

11100 WinTrust General Operating -2997

Amount

Date Num Vendor Memo Amount Account Num

11/01/2023 ACH Heartland Payment Systems Merchant CC Processing Fees 114.83 56009

11/03/2023 ACH Chase Paymentech Merchant CC Processing Fees 63.28 56009

11/03/2023 ACH Paypal Merchant CC Processing Fees 25.70 56009

10/18/2023 14011 Product LLC
Construction, Furniture & Workroom Design &
Documents 12,571.81 61100

10/18/2023 14012 The New York Times
Large Type Weekly Subscription Renewal
10/02/23-09/29/24 166.40 53100

10/18/2023 14013 Weblinx, Inc.
Annual Website Hosting & Maintenance fee for
New DPL Website 650.00 55360

10/18/2023 14014 Rotary Club of Deerfield Dues & Luncheon - Qtr 3 2023 460.00 56600

10/18/2023 14015 OverDrive, Inc. eBooks - October 2023 2,686.46 53500

10/18/2023 14016 CDW Government, Inc.
Meeting Room Refresh & MakerSpace Charging
Stations 12,776.90 56440, 61100

10/18/2023 14017 Des Plaines Glass Company Replace (2) Glass Portions behind Media Desk 1,060.00 61100

10/18/2023 14018
Ancel, Glink, Diamond, Bush,
DiCianni & Krafthefer, P.C. Legal Fees-September 2023 56.25 56500

10/18/2023 14019 Incrediblebats, Inc. Creature Open House for Haunted Library 800.00 54400

10/18/2023 14020 AV Techsource, Inc. Consult to Design AV System for Meeting Rooms 4,650.00 55360

10/18/2023 14021
Atomatic Mechanical
Services, Inc.

Replacing (2) Valent Fan Motors, Furnish & Install
DOAS Retro-Fit Controller, ACCU-2 Repair Leak at
Valve 26,440.00 52200

10/18/2023 14022 Lechner and Sons Lobby Mats 10/17/23 123.15 52100

10/18/2023 14023
Chicago Tribune Company,
LLC

Classified Listing for Legal Notice of Construction
being done at the Library - 2023 104.57 56500

10/18/2023 14024 Peerless Network, Inc. Phone Support Maintenance 10/15/23-11/14/23 1,132.13 52430

10/18/2023 14025 Anderson Pest Solutions Pest Management - October 2023 71.40 52100

10/18/2023 14026 Sikich LLP
Automation Support for Servers & Workstations &
Storage Cloud Backup - November 2023 6,965.00 55360

10/18/2023 14027 Pioneer Press
Deerfield Review Thursday Only (4 Copies) Annual
Payment 106.00 53100

10/18/2023 14028 ThermFlo, Inc. Labor & Replacement Parts for Generator Tune Up 5,997.00 52200

10/18/2023 14029 News-Sun
Lake County News-Sun (Mon-Sat) 1 Copy & 1
extra copy Sat Only - Annual Payment 614.64 53100

10/18/2023 14030 FSS Technologies LLC Burglar Alarm System Quarterly Maintenance Fee 120.00 52200

10/18/2023 14031 Madeline Dahlman Book Discussion w/Madeline Dahlman - 11-9-23 200.00 54210

11/08/2023 14032
Atomatic Mechanical
Services, Inc.

ACCU-3 Slave Repairs,Service Call to Investigate
Issues with unit 9,466.00 52200

11/08/2023 14033 Midwest Tape 2000007021
Acquisitions for AV, Processing Supplies &
Cataloging Service - October 2023 6,151.12 

53320, 53340, 56420,
56550

11/08/2023 14034 Ingram Library Services LLC
Acquisitions for Books, AV, and Processing
Supplies - October 2023 14,683.91 

53221, 53222,53241,
53320, 53340, 56420

11/08/2023 14035 OverDrive, Inc. eBooks - October 2023 9,899.70 53500

11/08/2023 14036 Stevens Chemical Company

Hand Towel, TP, Tissues, Sanitizer Wipes,
Napkins, Trash Liners, Paper Plates, Hand Soap,
Sanitizer Cleaner, Spray Bottles (2) 1,774.33 52100

11/08/2023 14037 Scalambrino & Arnoff, LLP Legal Fees - October 2023 80.00 56500

11/08/2023 14038 ByWater Solutions, LLC Aspen Catalog 11,600.00 55350

11/08/2023 14039 Jarrett Dapier
Haunted Library Skeleton (2) Storytimes with
Author Jarrett Dapier 300.00 54400

14



11/08/2023 14040
Suffolk Cooperative Library
System

Sustainable Libraries Initiative - Annual
Membership 200.00 56600

11/08/2023 14041 North Central O Gaugers
Holiday Train Run with North Central program
12/2/23 600.00 54210, 54400

11/08/2023 14042 Claudia Moffat
Make A Toothbrush Rug Program (2 Classes):
11/18/23 600.00 54210

11/08/2023 14043 Gerald W. Savage
The Reintroduction of the Native Americans into
Illinois - 11/08/23 284.06 54210

11/08/2023 14044 ACC Business Internet Service 09/11/23-10/10/23 902.22 52440

11/08/2023 14045 State Industrial Products Air Care Program 197.34 52100

11/08/2023 14046 Cintas Corporation
First Aid Supplies & Cabinets, Monthly Lease for
(3) New AED Devices 1,387.02 52200, 56410

11/08/2023 14047 Graphic Solutions, Inc. Browsing Winter 2023-2024 Graphic Design 1,985.00 56555

11/08/2023 14048 Quadient Leasing USA, Inc.
Postage Machine Quarterly Lease:
9/2/2023-12/1/2023 221.67 56200

11/08/2023 14049 Gary Midkiff and Company Virtual Great Decisions Program 11/21/23 215.00 54210

11/08/2023 14050 Lechner and Sons Lobby Mats 10/31/23 123.15 54210

11/08/2023 14051 Johnson Floor Company, Inc. Replace Linoleum on Youth 1/2 Wall by Bathrooms 9,390.00 61100

11/08/2023 14052 Best Quality Cleaning Monthly Cleaning - November 2023 3,500.00 52100

11/08/2023 14053 KnowBe4, Inc.
Fee for Addt'l Licenses Needed for Cyber Security
& Phishing Test Platform for Staff 142.50 55350

11/08/2023 14054 Demco, Inc.
Classification Labels, CD Album Pages & Book
Tape 232.83 56420

11/08/2023 14055 Kanopy Inc. Pay Per Use Program 534.00 53500

11/08/2023 14056 Midwest Tape Hoopla Subscription - October 2023 4,304.17 53500

11/08/2023 14057 Clean Art Works, Inc.
Clean all Northside Windows - Inside & Out & Stain
Removal - 11/2/23 470.00 52300

10/23/2023 ACH AT&T Voice Lines: 08/29/23-09/28/23 350.13 52430

10/23/2023 ACH Quadient Leasing USA, Inc.
Postage Added to Meter in Patron Services -
10/19/23 400.00 56200

10/25/2023 ACH Wex Health, Inc. FSA Monthly Fees - October 2023 54.90 51500

11/01/2023 ACH Village of Deerfield Water & Sewer - September 2023 204.43 52410

11/01/2023 ACH Village of Deerfield Water & Sewer - September 2023 173.77 52410

11/01/2023 ACH Amazon

Invoice #: 1XQK-FPCX-67KX
Invoice Date: 11/01/2023 for October 2023
Credit Memo#: 1YVX-Q7NV-9MD4 - October 2023 5,271.19 

51600, 53222, 53241,
53320, 53600, 54210,
54400, 54500, 56009,
56410, 55440, 56440,

61100

11/02/2023 ACH
De Lage Landen Financial
Services, Inc.

Monthly Lse for 7 Copiers and 3 Printers -
November 2023 1,808.72 55360

11/04/2023 ACH Comcast Cable Patron Internet Service 10/16/23-11/15/23 210.94 52440

11/06/2023 ACH Google, Inc. Google Apps - November 2023 1,107.00 55350

11/07/2023 ACH Thomas Interiors
Deposit for Upper Level Renovation Furniture
(50%) 62,977.62 61100

11/09/2023 ACH USPS Bulk Mailing Postage for Winter '23-'24 Browsing 1,134.62 56200

11/09/2023 ACH First Bank Mastercard October 2023 Credit Card Payment 5,995.18 20001-20014

Total for 11100 WinTrust General Operating -2997 236,684.23 

15



Deerfield Public Library
Credit Card Transactions by Account Holder

 As of 11/08/2023
Presented for Approval November 15, 2023

Date Num Vendor Memo Amount Account Description
20000 Credit Cards Payable
20001 Admin - 4734

Total for 20001 Admin - 4734 85.99
20002 Business Office - 1381

Total for 20002 Business Office - 1381 1,476.67
20003 Info Technology (IT) - 5382

Total for 20003 Info Technology (IT) - 5382 3,046.40
20004 Facilities - 1382

Total for 20004 Facilities - 1382 5.52
20007 Adult Services - 2368

Total for 20007 Adult Services - 2368 226.91
20010 Adult Prog Coord - 5416

Total for 20010 Adult Prog Coord - 5416 134.90
20011 Youth Prog Coord - 1971

11/08/2023 AD 10/09/23 MailChimp E-Newsletter Mailing Monthly Subscription 69.00 Outreach Programs
11/08/2023 AD 10/15/23 Spotify Spotify for iPads Monthly Subscription 16.99 Youth Programming

11/08/2023 BO 10/09/23 Grainger
Menstrual Supplies that were delayed in
shipping 108.92 General Operating Supplies

11/08/2023 BO 10/14/23 Quill Copier Paper Restock 159.96 General Operating Supplies

11/08/2023 BO 10/17/23 Grainger
Menstrual Supplies that were delayed in
shipping 108.92 General Operating Supplies

11/08/2023 BO 10/27/23 Quill High Absorbency Towels for MakerSpace 36.95 General Operating Supplies

11/08/2023 BO 10/27/23 Library Works
Training: "Creating Fundable Grant Proposals in
Libraries" - J. Hosein 49.00 Training & Education

11/08/2023 BO 10/27/23 Headspace Headspace for Work Annual Membership 1,012.92 Other Benefits

11/08/2023 IT 10/07/23 Adobe Renewal for All Staff (3 of 3) 359.13 Software & Licenses
11/08/2023 IT 10/08/23 Wasabi Technologies Storage for Remote Backup 32.91 IT Support

11/08/2023 IT 10/09/23 Adobe
Staff Creative Cloud All Apps Monthly
Subscription 54.99 Software & Licenses

11/08/2023 IT 10/11/23 Deerfield Public Library
Test for New Square Terminal for Patron
Services 0.25 Fines & Fees

11/08/2023 IT 10/12/23 Omni Concepts Spare Wall Key for Meeting Rooms 80.91 Interior Facility Maintenance

11/08/2023 IT 10/12/23 B&H Photo
Replacement Hardware for AV Refresh in
Meeting Rooms 613.94 Facility Improvements

11/08/2023 IT 10/13/23 B&H Photo
Assisted Listening Device Receiver
Replacement for Meeting Rooms 261.00 IT Equipment

11/08/2023 IT 10/20/23 B&H Photo

Assisted Listening Device Receiver
Replacement for Meeting Rooms & Charger for
Devices 1,608.75 IT Equipment

11/08/2023 IT 10/30/23 Deerfield Public Library
Test for Remapping MakerSpace Square
Terminal 0.25 Fines & Fees

11/08/2023 IT 11/01/23 Google Monthly Charge for Library Board Voicemail 14.27 Telephone - Voice
11/08/2023 IT 11/01/23 Liberated Syndication Podcasting Hosting 20.00 Software & Licenses

11/08/2023 FC 10/19/23 Home Depot Screws for Handrails 5.52 Interior Facility Maintenance

11/08/2023 AS 10/08/23 Disney Plus Roku Monthly Subscription 12.99 E-Resources
11/08/2023 AS 10/12/23 JoAnn's Fabric for Escape Room for Haunted Library 44.97 Youth Programming
11/08/2023 AS 10/14/23 Netflix Roku Monthly Subscription 19.99 E-Resources
11/08/2023 AS 10/19/23 Apple Roku Monthly Subscription - Apple TV 6.99 E-Resources
11/08/2023 AS 10/19/23 Apple Roku Monthly Subscription - Apple TV 6.99 E-Resources
11/08/2023 AS 10/30/23 Netflix Roku Monthly Subscription 19.99 E-Resources
11/08/2023 AS 11/03/23 Disney Plus Roku Monthly Subscription 14.99 E-Resources

11/08/2023 AS 11/03/23 Event Brite
Adult Reading Round Table Conference 2023 -
T.Rigsby 100.00 Training & Education

11/08/2023 APC 10/12/23 Walgreens Candy for guessing game for Haunted Library 31.96 Adult Programming
11/08/2023 APC 10/23/23 Zoom Monthly Subscription 55.99 Adult Programming

11/08/2023 APC 11/03/23 Jewel - Osco
Desserts for Lunch & Learn - Joni Mitchell
Tribute Program 11/3/23 46.95 Adult Programming

11/08/2023 YPC 10/06/23 St. Gregory's Church Mini Pumpkins for Haunted Library (200) 200.00 Youth Programming

16



11/08/2023 YPC 10/07/23 Oriental Trading Co. Haunted Library & Crafts for Grab & Go 211.75 Youth Programming
11/08/2023 YPC 10/13/23 St. Gregory's Church Extra Mini Pumpkins for Haunted Library 30.00 Youth Programming

11/08/2023 YPC 10/25/23 Wyndham Hotel
Lodging & Parking for ILA Conference 2023 - C.
Bueno 145.66 Training Travel

11/08/2023 YC 10/13/23 Target
Cleaning supplies for Haunted Library Face
Painting Station 21.36 Youth Programming

11/08/2023 YC 10/18/23 JoAnn's T-Shirts for Sublimation program 61.82 Youth Programming

11/08/2023 TS 10/11/23 Rosati's Pizza Food for Teen Advisory Board 10/11/23 54.23 Youth Programming 
11/08/2023 TS 10/12/23 Urban Native Era Hummingbird Stickers for Oct Teen Book Bunch 27.59 Youth Programming 

11/08/2023 TS 10/12/23 Amtrak
Amtrak Tickets for YALSA Conference 11/10/23
- D. Grube & E. Koch 160.00 Training Travel

11/08/2023 TS 10/25/23 Target Prizes for Youth Program 41.38 Youth Programming 
11/08/2023 TS 11/01/23 DN Decorlance Bluey Family Cutout Sign for Youth Dept (4ft) 65.00 Literacy Support - Youth

Total for 20011 Youth Prog Coord - 1971 587.41
20012 Youth Coord - 1259

Total for 20012 Youth Coord - 1259 83.18
20013 Teen Services - 6330

Total for 20013 Teen Services - 6330 348.20
Total for 20000 Credit Cards Payable 5,995.18

17



 To:  Board of Trustees 
 Re:  Proposed change from Bank Financial to JP Morgan Chase 
 Date:  November 15, 2023 

 Over the course of the last year, the library has encountered multiple instances of discrepancies 
 in coin counts, frequent bank staff turnover, and restrictive business hours, when dealing with 
 Bank Financial. In light of this, we recommend switching to a different bank that offers improved 
 customer service and greater convenience for our Daily Deposit and Petty Cash Checking 
 accounts. 

 In this transition, our Board Officers will actively participate in the account setup process. Library 
 staff recommend that we transition these accounts in December 2023 from Bank Financial to JP 
 Morgan Chase. 

18



 Director’s Report: November 2023 
 FYI 

 ●  The Board will have an Executive Session to review the board vacancy applications. This 
 information will be sent as a separate attachment. 

 ●  As part of the annual Per Capita Grant application, I’ll provide a brief overview of the 
 Library’s progress towards meeting the Standards for Illinois Libraries. 

 ●  Our beloved Communications & Outreach Coordinator, Judy Hoffman, will be retiring on 
 December 1, 2023. We will miss her! 

 ●  I am happy to announce that Stephanie Scaletta will be joining the staff as our new 
 Communications & Outreach Manager. She starts on November 27, 2023. 

 ●  Our Haunted Library on October 13 was such a success! 

 ●  Staff in the Halloween Spirit! 

19



 ●  Articles of Interest 
 ○  7 Surprising Ways  This article highlights some interesting  ways public libraries can 

 save you money! 

 Personnel 

 ●  In October the library had 0 separations 
 ●  In October the library filled 2 positions 

 ○  Library Aide on October 18 
 ○  MakerSpace Assistant on October 30 

 ●  The library had 1 position open 

 DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 Adult Services Report 

 Melissa Stoeger, Assistant Director of Adult & Youth Services 
 ●  Our biggest program for October was the Haunted Library, which was an after hours 

 event on Friday, 10/13. We spent months preparing for this event and had a great turnout 
 and reception from patrons. We had 217 people attend. 

 ●  Our Lunchtime Listens on Twitch have been very popular this month. Anne and Cristina 
 have been reading Frankenstein over the course of the month. We had a total of 179 
 people attend the sessions, with one session getting 48 attendees! We also had a total of 
 124 people watch the recordings. 

 ●  We had 16 people attend our Take a Minute for Medicare program, and another 48 watch 
 the recording. Jamie received this nice comment from an attendee: 

20

https://www.npr.org/2023/10/16/1199885817/how-to-get-the-most-out-of-your-library?fbclid=IwAR2MoOgmJrcTM7yTw0af8ww5oOfgbkixDa6LKAf2FXylhRDAs3Qs1NYlCUA
https://sites.hireology.com/deerfieldpubliclibrary/jobs.html


 ○  “The speaker seemed excellent. Very knowledgeable and thoughtful in her 
 presentation. I wish I could have stayed longer, but I am grateful for the recording. 
 Thanks for everything.” 

 ●  Vicki had 11 attendees for her PLACE program “Festival of Frights.” She got this nice 
 email from a parent: 

 ○  “Thank you for your Zooms. S really enjoys them.” 
 ●  2,161 Patron Questions 
 ●  6 Library Lifelines, 8 in library One on Ones 
 ●  5 exams proctored 
 ●  27 Books to Go deliveries 
 ●  32 live programs with 706 attendees. 18 passive programs with 494 participants. 
 ●  175 total podcast listens 
 ●  727 Study Room reservations (way up!) 
 ●  Database usage is still way up (12,197 uses), mainly due to over use of Culturegrams 
 ●  Last month our digital magazine use doubled from 237 to 476. This month our usage 

 jumped all the way up to  1,088  . 

 Business Office Report 

 Kelly DeCorrevont, Head of Finance 
 ●  Completed new hire orientations on October 2, October 3, October 18 and October 30. 
 ●  Attended a Deerfield Wellness Committee meeting on October 3. 
 ●  Cheryl and Kelly completed check runs on October 4 and October 18. 
 ●  The ½ wall refresh was started on October 3 and is now complete in Youth Services. 
 ●  Mira and Kelly completed payroll on October 12 and October 26. 
 ●  Attended the MakerSpace Assistant Interviews on October 10. 
 ●  We had our Annual Wellness Screening and Flu Shots on October 18. 
 ●  Cheryl attended Investigating Fraud training at Arlington Heights PD on October 18. 
 ●  We sent out annual review information to eligible employees on October 25. 
 ●  October is Breast Cancer Awareness Month  .  The Wellness Committee hosted a well 

 attended Breast Cancer Awareness session on October 25. 

 IT Report 

 Steve Wuehr, Head of IT 
 Makerspace 
 MakerSpace has received new replacement laptops along with a new charging cart. The new 
 devices are better equipped to run the applications used for MakerSpace programs and the new 
 cart allows for better ventilation, allowing us to have the device on while being charged, making 
 updates easier. We are still awaiting one new laptop for our new Makerspace Assistant, Kerstin. 
 That machine will be configured and deployed once it arrives. 

 Credit Card Payments 
 We have completed our transition to Square for accepting payments of fees. We have retired the 
 credit card terminals on the self check units which will result in a reduction in recurring charges 
 while not adversely impacting the patron experience. 

21

https://www.nationalbreastcancer.org/breast-cancer-awareness-month/


 Meeting Room Audiovisual Equipment 
 We are in the process of procuring new hardware to refresh the AV technology in the meeting 
 rooms. Along with aligning the system design with how the rooms are utilized, a refresh of the 
 hardware will improve reliability of the system. Along with the replacement of existing hardware, 
 we will also be adding the ability to wirelessly share a laptop or other presentation device with 
 the projectors in the space. We have recently completed the purchase and installation of new 
 Assisted Listening Devices for hard of hearing patrons. These new devices are easier to use and 
 integrate with newer style hearing aids. 

 Equipment Recycling 
 We will be working with a local electronics recycler to dispose of old and broken computer 
 hardware. This will consist of several 7+ year old desktop computers, several broken monitors, 
 several broken printers and other smaller items that have outlived their useful life. This recycler 
 offers reduced/free pickup of many items for education and governmental bodies. The timeline 
 for this is before the end of the year. 

 Door Access Control 
 The hardware is now available to the library and has been received by our vendor. We will be 
 scheduling the replacement of the existing boards soon. 

 Server Replacement 
 We will be looking to purchase a new server in the near future. The only change here is that we 
 now believe we will be able to replace three existing servers with this single new piece of 
 hardware. This will allow us to consolidate the maintenance costs for three pieces of hardware 
 down to one, which, over the life of the server will result in a savings to the library. 

 Support Services Workstations 
 With Makerspace now complete, we will be working with Support Services to replace their 
 workstations next. They will be the first department in the library to transition from Windows 10 to 
 Windows 11. 

 MakerSpace Report 

 Ted Gray, MakerSpace Manager 
 ●  The MakerSpace Assistant position was posted and we received over 20 applicants. 

 Kerstin graduated with a civil engineering degree and recently worked full time at the 
 LaPorte Indiana Library Makerspace. She comes to us with extensive Makerspace 
 experience and has already given us some great new ideas. We’re looking forward to 
 having Kerstin as part of our team and taking the Makerspace to the next level. 

 ●  The Haunted Library event was great! The MakerSpace hosted the pumpkin carving and 
 for a few days we had a 150 pound pumpkin in the room. We created over 70 grab bags 
 full of MakerSpace goodies and they were all gone by the end of the night. All of the 
 MakerSpace staff stayed for the evening and contributed to help make it a success. 

 ●  The new MakerSpace laptops have arrived as well as the new cabinet. IT is working on 
 getting everything set up for us. We can’t wait to get them! 

22



 ●  Working on a proposal to extend the hours of the MakerSpace. Our plan is to do a trial 
 run of expanded hours in late Nov/early Dec when it’s at the peak Holiday season busy 
 time. Then go back to the current hours for the end of the month, and then roll out the 
 new expanded hours in the new year. 

 ●  We would like to create instructional materials for all of the devices in the MakerSpace. 
 We are starting to plan what we would like to accomplish during the first week of January 
 when we plan on closing the MakerSpace for a week. Lots of cleaning up and organizing 
 and planning. 

 ●  It was a MakerSpace wedding! We had a couple do a lot of prep work for their wedding 
 here in the MakerSpace. Table numbers, lanterns, and signage. 

 ●  Grace created this trophy for the Haunted Library costume contest. Zach made all of the 
 rest. MakerSpace table with grab bags ready to go! 

23



 ●  We made laser engraved luggage tags for a patron. 

 ●  For some reason it seems like “coach” bottles have been big recently. If you coach a 
 team in Deerfield you’re going to end up with a personalized water bottle! 

 ●  A cute little pumpkin onesie! This was done with our sublimation printer. Full color. 

 ●  We have a patron who owns a campground in Minnesota. They’ve been making new 
 signage in our MakerSpace with a rustic look. 

24



 ●  We helped put together a few Halloween costumes. Here are matching wizard robes. 

 ●  This patron created custom T-Shirts for their bridal party. She created a logo, had it 
 turned into an embroidery file on Etsy and then brought the file into the MakerSpace. She 
 made around 20 T-Shirts and they turned out great! 

25



 ●  We have another parent starting to prepare for their child’s Bar Mitzvah. We love it when 
 patrons plan in advance! Our patron created a logo and etched it onto an acrylic block. 

 ●  We’ve really been looking at our attendance at our programs and what sort of programs 
 seem to be the most popular. We’ve found that crafting programs where people make 
 things seem to be the most popular whereas the more lecture based technology 
 programs aren’t as popular. While October is a small sample size the numbers seem to 
 back this up. 

 ●  We had three programs in October that required registration. 
 Total spots in all three programs: 34 
 Total attendance: 30 for an 88% attendance rate which is really great. 

 ●  However two of the classes were crafting classes. In those classes we had 20 total spots 
 and 20 patrons attended for a 100% attendance rate. 

26



 Outreach Report 

 Judy Hoffman, Outreach Coordinator 
 ●  Launch of New Meeting Room Reservation Platform:  We have transitioned our online 

 meeting room reservations from a Google form to Communico Reserve. This 
 user-friendly platform will improve the experience for patrons with the ability to 
 immediately see availability of dates, and auto-reply messages to confirm receipt of the 
 request and again when approved or declined. 

 ●  Rotary Presentation  : Approximately three times a year,  the Library is scheduled to 
 provide a speaker for the weekly Rotary meeting. On October 26, I presented an 
 overview of the changes in library services over the past decade, at DPL and libraries 
 throughout the nation. 

 ●  Media Coverage  / WGN Radio WGN Radio (October 27):  Deerfield Public Art 
 showcases works from local artists  . Interview with  Jeff Marks, chair of the Deerfield Fine 
 Arts Commission. The involvement of DPL is included throughout the interview. 

 Patron Services Report 

 Stephanie Keough, Head of Patron Services 
 ●  We welcomed our new Library Aide on October 18. 

 Support Services Report 

 Pam Skittino, Head of Support Services 
 ●  Created a new purchase alert for On Order titles so the selectors would know EVERY On 

 Order title that has holds 
 ●  Lynn and Stuart worked at the Haunted Library 
 ●  Pam watched the recording of the WILIUG conference 
 ●  Pam started a Data Studio class that will go through 2024. 

 Youth Services Report 

 Melissa Stoeger, Assistant Director of Adult & Youth Services 
 ●  Programs 

 ○  The Haunted Library program was a huge success. We offered pumpkin 
 decorating, face painting, storytimes, games, escape rooms and a costume 
 contest. The most popular event by far was the Creepy Creatures Meet and 
 Greet, where attendees got to interact with snakes, rats, skunks and a sloth! We 
 received a lot of positive comments from patrons about how much fun they had 
 and how well run the event was. 

 ○  Other popular events this month were Drawing Haunted Houses and Dia de Los 
 Muertos storytime. 

 ○  Storytime moved back inside for the winter and we had 62 attendees at the first 
 indoor storytime. 

27

https://wgnradio.com/your-hometown/deerfield-public-art-showcases-works-from-local-artists/
https://wgnradio.com/your-hometown/deerfield-public-art-showcases-works-from-local-artists/


 ●  Outreach 
 ○  Kary had 16 visits with Deerfield schools and saw 413 kids! Several teachers 

 reached out to say thank you and how much their kids enjoyed the storytimes. 
 ●  Displays 

 ○  We had some fun displays in YS this month. We had a Freedom to Read display, 
 to which a young girl commented that she had just learned about banned books in 
 her DPS 109 school. We also had a Taylor Swift display that caught the eye of a 
 parent who took pictures to show her daughter. 

 ●  Collection 
 ○  A teacher from another town asked if we had lesson plan materials. Emily showed 

 her our parent teacher collection and she instantly found something she was 
 excited about. She commented on how well our library is organized. 

 ●  1,013 patron questions 
 ●  4 Personalized Picks 
 ●  29 in-person programs with 1,072 attendees 
 ●  13 Passive programs with 520 participation 
 ●  16 Outreach events with 413 attendees 

28



Deerfield Public Library
October 2023 Sta�s�cs

PrintPrint

AVAV

VirtualVirtual

  -

  50,000

  100,000

  150,000

  200,000

  250,000

2020 2021 2022 2023

Circ Trends by Type YTD

  214,759 

  111,034 

Print

AV

Virtual

Circulation by Type YTD

  9,608  9,608

  15,365  15,365

  564  564

  482  482

  9,372  9,372

  1,468  1,468

Adult

Youth

Teen

ILL, LINKin, Find More
Illinois

  -   5,000   10,000   15,000   20,000

Physical

Virtual

Circula�on by Collec�on

  1,603,213 

Print

AV

Virtual

Collection by Type - October

  298,256  298,256
  315,590  315,590

  347,578  347,578
  369,310  369,310

0

50000

100000

2020 2021 2022 2023

Total Circulation YTD

  -

  10,000

  20,000

  30,000

  40,000

2020 2021 2022 2023

Questions Answered YTD

29



Deerfield Public Library
October 2023 Sta�s�cs

**Virtual passive program numbers are tallied in the month following their release; in Feb the Jan #'s will be accurate

462462

416416

355355

202202

200200

199199

197197

makerSpace

photo scavenger hunt

online resources

board vacancy

policies

contact

hours

0 100 200 300 400 500

Most Popular Webpages

4,8464,846

9,0979,097
10,92910,929

15,40015,400

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

2020 2021 2022 2023

Monthly Library Visits

248248

649649

549549

569569

546546

539539

382382

Sun

Mon

Tue

Wed

Thu

Fri

Sat

Average Daily Attendance

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

2023202220212020

Active Program Attendance YTD

  1,399  1,399

  1,081  1,081   1,007  1,007

  532  532
  424  424

  308  308
  165  165

  -

  500

  1,000

  1,500

Valueline Culturegrams Consumer Reports DPL archives Mango Ancestry A to Z

Most popular databases - September

2,2512,251

13,00813,008

17,95317,953
21,16821,168

15,16115,161
17,98217,98216,58816,588

10,08510,08510,14310,143

4,3344,334

00 00
0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

Jan
Feb

Mar
Apr

May
Jun Jul

Aug
Sep

Oct Nov
Dec

Passive Program Attendance 2023 **

30



 To:  Board of Trustees 
 Re:  FY 2024 Per Capita Grant Application: Standards Review, Chapters 1-13 
 Date:  November 15, 2023 

 At the October and November board meetings, we will review and discuss the Illinois Public 
 Library Standards Checklists as part of our FY2024 Per Capita grant application. The checklists 
 are included after this memo in the packet. 

 Chapter 1  Core Standards 
 Chapter 2  Governance & Administration 
 Chapter 3  Personnel 
 Chapter 4  Access 
 Chapter 5  Building Infrastructure & Maintenance 
 Chapter 6  Safety: 
 Chapter 7  Collection Management 
 Chapter 8  System Member Responsibilities & Resource Sharing 
 Chapter 9  Public Services: Reference & Readers Advisory Services 
 Chapter 10  Programming 
 Chapter 11  Youth/Young Adult Services 
 Chapter 12  Technology 
 Chapter 13  Marketing, Promotion & Collaboration 

31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51


	Agenda_11152023
	Minutes_10242023
	Balance Sheet_10312023
	BudgetvsActuals_10312023
	PMA Total Portfolio Report_10312023
	Check Detail Report_11152023
	CC Report_11152023
	New Bank Account Memo_11152023
	Directors Report_November Board Meeting
	Directors Report_Stats October 2023
	FY 2024 Per Capita Grant Application_ Standards Review Chapters MEMO_11152023
	Chapters 1-6
	Chapters 7-13



